
          
 
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

   Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/93210722323 Meeting ID: 932 1072 2323 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

2.1 Regular Council Meeting, May 25, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, May 25, 2020 be approved as 
circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting, May 11, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held May 11, 2020 be 
adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

5. REPORTS 

5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated May 25, 2020 regarding 
Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020,  

 Amendment Bylaw No. 564, 2020  

 Recommendation: 

 That “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 564, 2020”, receive first, second and third reading. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
May 25, 2020 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/93210722323


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 25, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated May 25, 2020 regarding 
Special Event Permit Policy  

Recommendations: 

1. That Council adopt Special Event Policy No. 212 

2. That Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 563, 2020 
be read a first, second and third time.  

5.3  Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated May 25, 2020 regarding 
 Parking and Bylaw Enforcement Update 

Recommendations: 

1. That Council approve the parking status remaining the same with various areas 
for Parking, No Parking and Resident Only Parking within the Village; and  

      That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines 
          Or - 

2. That Council approve temporary Resident Only Parking in the Village until 
September 8, 2020 with a cost of approximately $3,000; and 

           That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines.  
          Or -  

3. That Council approve permanent Resident Only Parking in the Village, effective 
as soon as possible with a cost of approximately $3,000; and 

          That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines. 
 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Preparation of a 
Budget for a review of the Official Community Plan and Bedwell Bay Sustainability 
Plan related to the Moratorium on the Highway Encroachment area on Marine 
Avenue 

Recommendation 

 That staff prepare a budget for Council consideration for a review of the Official 
Community Plan and Bedwell Bay Sustainability Plan related to the Moratorium on 
the Highway Encroachment Area on Marine Avenue.   

 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 

7. BYLAWS 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.15 be received. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS  

8.1 Nita Mikl, Assistant Secretary Treasurer, School District 43 – Coquitlam, donation 
 receipt dated March 6, 2020 regarding Thank You for the Donation to the Port 
 Moody Secondary After Grad 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 25, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.2 Richard Stewart, Mayor, City of Coquitlam, letter to Honourable Selina Robinson, 
 Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing dated May 7, 2020 regarding Review and 
 Expansion of the Provincial Property Tax Deferment Program 

8.3 Honourable Katrine Conroy, Minister of Children and Family Development, letter 
 dated May 13, 2020 regarding British Columbia Child and Youth in Care Week 

8.4 Mike Hurley, Mayor, City of Burnaby, letter dated May 14, 2020 regarding Federal 
 Financial Support for Transit Operations ECC Report 5.4, Council Meeting 2020 
 May 11 (full report available at the Village office) 

8.5 Aliya Mohamed, Director of Public Affairs, TransLink, email dated May 21, 2020 
 regarding TransLink Safe Operating Action Plan 

8.6 George Zhao, Belcarra Resident, letter dated May 4, 2020 regarding the Potential 
 Sale of Waterfront Properties  

8.7 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident , email dated May 11, 2020 regarding Resident 
 Only Parking 

8.8 Don Reid, Belcarra Resident, email dated May 16, 2020 regarding Dead Trees 

8.9 Don Babineau, Belcarra Resident, email dated May 17, 2020 regarding Council 
 Meeting Follow-Up 

8.10 Jim & Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Residents, letter dated May 17, 2020 regarding 
 Moratorium Lifted and Dock Licence Renewal Fees 

8.11 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated May 19, 2020 regarding Belcarra’s 
 Grant Application for an Additional Water Tank  

8.12 Joel Johnston, Belcarra Resident, email dated May 19, 2020 regarding Parking 
 Situation in Belcarra 

8.13 Shannon & Don Wightman, Belcarra Residents, email dated May 20, 2020 
 regarding Road and Traffic Concerns on Belcarra Roads 

8.14 Jillian Hull & Eric Broberg, Belcarra Residents, email dated May 21, 2020 
 regarding Parking on Bedwell Bay Road 

8.15 City of Port Moody, Council Resolution dated May 12, 2020 regarding Homelessness  

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

 Recommendation: 

That the May 25, 2020 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if 
the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 

(i)  the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including  
communications necessary for that purpose.   

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision 
of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in 
the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm the 
interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 25, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 Recommendation: 

 That the May 25, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 



             
 

Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held May 11, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark  
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder  

Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Also in Attendance 
Guy Patterson, Young Anderson (departed at 8:20 pm) 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services  
Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 
Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Belenkie called the Zoom meeting to order at 7:00 pm.    

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

2.1 Regular Council Meeting, May 11, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, May 11, 2020 be approved as 
circulated. 

CARRIED 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held April 27, 2020 be adopted. 

CARRIED 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 May 11, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  May 11, 2020 

Page 2 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 No items. 

5. REPORTS 

5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated May 11, 2020 regarding Investment 
of Surplus and Reserve Funds 

 K. Bjorgaard outline the report. Considerable discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the report dated May 11, 2020 regarding “Investment of Surplus and Reserve 
 Funds” be received for information; and 
 That the Financial Consultant report to Council on Quotations received for  Investment 
 Vehicles. 

CARRIED 

The Agenda was revised with Item 5.3 following 5.1 

7:42 pm 5.2 Guy Patterson, Young Anderson, verbal report regarding Clarification of Sharing Legal 
 Opinions 

  Guy Patterson, Legal Council with Young Anderson, outlined the request to provide 
 clarification on Council sharing legal opinions with the public. G. Patterson recommended 
 review of legal opinions on a case by case basis. 

  Mayor Belenkie noted that a summary of a legal opinion on Road Ends has been 
 provided to the public and queried with regard to why the legal opinion itself is not 
 released. 

  G. Patterson noted that disclosure of a legal opinion may have unintended 
 consequences in respect of solicitor / client privilege. He recommended caution with 
 regard to release of full documents rather than a summary, as disclosure may cause 
 privilege to be waived. Legal advice is privileged. An individual Councillor member may 
 say they are in conflict with releasing a legal opinion. Council asked pertinent 
 questions. Discussion ensued. 

  G. Patterson noted that it would be in the interest of Council to adopt a policy favouring 
 the disclosure to the public of legal advice the Village has received. L. Dysart will work 
 with G. Patterson on the development of a policy related to the release of legal advice 
 for Council consideration. Following the adoption of the policy, the release of the legal 
 opinion on Road Ends will be reviewed in a Closed Council meeting. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

 That the verbal report from Guy Patterson, Young Anderson, regarding Clarification of 
Sharing Legal Opinions be received for information. 

CARRIED 

 Mayor Belenkie thanked Guy Patterson for participating in the meeting. 

Guy Patterson departed the meeting at 8:20 pm 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  May 11, 2020 

Page 3 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 7:13 pm 5.3 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, verbal report  regarding 
 Summary of the Two Fires at Turtlehead Road and Senkler Road  

  Chief Sharpe provided a summary of the Turtlehead Road and Senkler fires. He 
 expanded on his statement recorded in the Water System Capacity for Fire Protection 
 Committee minutes on March 19, 2019.  

  Councillor Drake thanked Chief Sharpe and the Sasamat Volunteer Department 
 (SVFD) for their commitment to SVFD. He queried with regard to the benefit of 
 sprinklers and monitored alarms in homes and removal of the branches and 
 underbrush on residential property. Chief Sharpe suggested that the Village request a 
 presentation on the  FireSmart Program, as it is a very notable program for fire 
 protection. 

  Chief Sharpe noted that when fighting a fire, a significant amount of water is required in 
 a short period of time. Considerable discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the verbal report from Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 
regarding Summary of the Two Fires at Turtlehead Road and Senkler Road be received 
for information. 

CARRIED 

 Mayor Belenkie thanked Chief Sharpe for providing an update and for answering 
questions. 

 7:13 pm 5.4 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd., report 
 dated May 6, 2020 regarding Belcarra Water System 

  Chris Boit provided an overview of the report regarding the Belcarra Water System. He 
 noted that ISL Engineering was requested by the Village to review the existing water 
 system and provide comments on its adequacy in providing water for firefighting 
 purposes.  

  Considerable discussion ensued. Council asked pertinent questions. 

  Mayor Belenkie noted that the Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee 
 will be meeting following the lifting of COVID-19 pandemic restrictions. 

  Mayor Belenkie advised that MP Nelly Shin raised, in the House of Commons, the 
 matter of the grant application for the Water Reservoir in Belcarra and queried with 
 regard to the timing of processing the application. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

 That the report from Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land 
Services Ltd., dated May 6, 2020 regarding Belcarra Water System be received for 
information. 

CARRIED 

 Mayor Belenkie thanked Chris Boit for his attendance and for the information provided. 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  May 11, 2020 

Page 4 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated May 11, 2020 regarding Fire Hall    
and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. He noted the 3 options provided for Council 
consideration. Considerable discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That Council direct staff to leave the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw as is and to 
provide clarification on the purpose and intent of including the fire hall capital 
expenditure in the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw through other public 
communication avenues and re-address the fire hall issue in  the upcoming 2021 – 
2025 Financial Planning / Budgeting process, based on obtaining updated information 
on the fire hall. 

DEFEATED  
Councillor Begg, Councillor Clark, Councillor Drake and Councillor Wilder  

voted in opposition 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That Council direct staff to bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 
Bylaw that does not include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding. 

 DEFEATED  
Mayor Belenkie, Councillor Begg and Councillor Drake voted in opposition 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That Council direct staff to bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 
Bylaw that does not include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding while 
recognizing that SVFD Trustees are considering the need to make major investment in  
fire halls.  

CARRIED 
Mayor Belenkie and Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

 It was noted that decisions will automatically cause Belcarra and Anmore, as SVFD 
partners, to face significant costs. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 

6.1 Bylaw Enforcement – Parking 

 Mayor Belenkie reported that 99 parking tickets were written on the previous weekend. 
 He noted that the Bylaw Enforcement Officer is doing a very good job with regard to 
 parking enforcement. 

6.2 Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee  

 Councillor Drake provided a verbal report regarding the Water System Capacity for Fire 
Protection (WSCFP) Committee. He thanked the Committee for agreeing to do 
additional work. Councillor Drake advised that he will be the Council representative for 
the WSCFP Committee when the Committee reconvenes. A budget will be provided for 
future Committee work. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  May 11, 2020 

Page 5 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

7. BYLAWS 

7.1 Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the “Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020” be 
 adopted.  

CARRIED 

7.2 Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 
 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That the “Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 
 Bylaw No. 562, 2020” be adopted. 

CARRIED 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.7 be received. 
 CARRIED 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 

8.1 James Baker, Mayor, Lake Country, letter dated April 15, 2020 to the Honourable  
 Bill Morneau, Minister of Finance regarding Interest Charged on Deferred Mortgage 
 Payments 

8.2 Richard Stewart, Mayor, City of Coquitlam, letter dated April 24, 2020 to Sav Dhaliwal, 
 Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver regarding COVID-19 Pandemic – Metro 
 Vancouver Response 

8.3 Linda Buchanan, Mayor, City of North Vancouver, letter dated April 30, 2020 to 
 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing regarding 
 Supporting British Columbians During the COVID-19 Pandemic  

8.4 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, email dated April 27, 2020 
regarding Letter on the April 27, 2020 Council Agenda Quoting the Fire Chief 

8.5  Ron Hicks & Janet Robertson, Belcarra Residents, letter dated April 25, 2020 regarding 
 Negative Impact of Road End Sales 

8.6 Ingrid Rice, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 25, 2020 regarding Road End Sales 
 to Finance Belcarra Waterflow / Reservoir 

8.7 Kim Alfreds, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 26,2020 regarding Water Resources 
and Road Ends 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 No items. 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  May 11, 2020 

Page 6 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 11 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

 No items. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

 That the May 11, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:57 pm. 
CARRIED 

 
 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
 

    

Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 Financial plan 2020 - 2024 
amendment.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   

Date: May 25, 2020   

 

From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant  

  

Subject: Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020,  

 Amendment Bylaw No. 564, 2020                       

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020, Amendment Bylaw     

No. 564, 2020”, receive first, second and third reading. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw which does not 

include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding in 2022.  

Background 

Council adopted the following motion on May 11, 2020: 

 “That Council direct staff to bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw that     

 does not include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding while recognizing that SVFD 

 Trustees are considering the need to make major investment in fire halls.”  

A 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw is now presented for first three readings. The Village of 

Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020, Amendment Bylaw 564, 2020 does not 

include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding in 2022. 

  

 

 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 

  
 

 

A bylaw to amend the 5 Year Financial Plan for the years 2020 – 2024. 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to Section 165 of the Community Charter, “Village of Belcarra 5 
Year Financial Plan 2020– 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020” was adopted on April 27, 2020; 
and  
 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 165 of the Community Charter, the financial plan 
may be amended by bylaw at any time.  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

 1. This Bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra 5 Year    
Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020, Amendment Bylaw 564, 2020”. 

 
 2. “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020” is 

hereby amended by deleting Schedule A – Financial Plan in its entirety and 
replacing it with Schedule A – Financial Plan attached to and forming part of this 
Bylaw. 

 
 

READ A FIRST TIME on                       
 
READ A SECOND TIME                     
 
READ A THIRD TIME on                    
 
ADOPTED by the Council on              
 

   

Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of  
Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020– 2024  
Bylaw No. 559, 2020, Amendment Bylaw 564, 2020 
 

 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024  

Bylaw No. 559, 2020  
Amendment Bylaw No. 564, 2020 



Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020, 
Amendment Bylaw 564, 2020  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Bylaw 564, 2020 Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 
2020-2024 No. 559, 2020 Amendment Bylaw.docx 

 

 
 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 File:  6410-04 

Date: May 25, 2020  

 

From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Subject: Special Event Permit Policy 

 

 

Recommendations 

1. That Council adopt Special Event Policy No. 212 

2. That Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 563, 2020 be read a 

first, second and third time.  

 

Background 

An update on the Temporary Use Permit process for the Evangelical Laymen’s Church proposed 

Tea Room was provided to Council on July 22, 2019. Council authorized staff to develop an 

Event Permitting procedure.  

Council subsequently approved a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) for the Tea Room and other 

uses; however, a TUP has not been issued as outstanding conditions are still being addressed.  

The proposed Special Event Policy will allow Council to regulate events such as a Tea Festival 

under a separate, more streamlined process. A TUP is generally issued for up to three years to 

allow a use not permitted by the Zoning Bylaw. A Special Event Permit will allow for short, 

infrequent events (i.e. for 1 to 3 days only).  

The Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 stipulates a fee of $195 for a Special Event Permit. 

A change in fee to $350 per day is proposed. This fee is in line with the film permit fee charged 

by the Village.  

A proposed amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw imposes a maximum fine of up to 

$10,000, per occurrence, for events violating the provisions of the Special Events Policy or a 

condition of an Event Permit. This fine is consistent with the maximum fine that may be imposed 

for a violation of the Business License Bylaw.  

The proposed approach to regulating special events is detailed in the Special Event Policy. The 

sections of the draft policy are summarized below:  

1. Policy purpose 

2. Application process and permitting requirements, including requiring a Special Event 

Permit for events with more than 35 participants, and requirement to submit a detailed 

application form that addresses the following: 

○ Event Plan 

○ Applicant information 

○ Dates and time of events 

○ Location information and site plan 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Council Report: Special Event Permit Policy 

May 25, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 Special Event Permit Policy Council Report.docx 

○ Access and parking considerations 

○ Security 

○ Washrooms/sanitary considerations 

○ First aid  

○ Rain contingency plan 

○ Waste management 

○ Other similar considerations outlined in the application form 

3. Provision for additional permits, such as Building Permits and Food Permits – site 

inspections may be required prior to approval 

4. Insurance 

5. Parking  

6. Notification  

7. Noise and nuisance  

8. Enforcement  

A standard Special Event Permit application has been drafted and is included in Attachment 2 of 

this report. As the nature of different events is highly variable, the decision to approve or reject 

an application will be at the discretion of the Village, with authority delegated to the Chief 

Administrative Officer.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1: Village of Belcarra Special Event Policy No. 212 

Attachment 2: Village of Belcarra Special Event Permit Application Form  

Attachment 3: Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw 

No. 563, 2020 

 

 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 1 Policy 212 Special Event Policy.docx 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Title: Special Event Policy 
 

 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY: COUNCIL  DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    

 

 

Purpose 

1. The Policy outlined below describes how the Village will review Special Event applications, 

to provide clarity for applicants, staff, Elected Officials, and property owners.  

 

Policy 

2. Applications and Permitting  

2.1.  All special events taking place in the Village with more than 35 participants will require 

a Special Event Permit issued by the Village.   

2.2. The fee for an event permit shall be established by the Village of Belcarra Fees and 

Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 as may be amended from time to time.  

2.3. The maximum duration for an event shall be three (3) days.  

2.4. Applications should be submitted no later than three (3) months prior to the event and 

should be substantially complete at time of submission.  

2.5. For larger events it is suggested to submit applications as early as possible, up to 1 year 

prior to the event, to allow sufficient staff time to evaluate and comment on Special 

Event Permit application requests.  

2.6. A detailed application form along with an Event Plan, must be submitted by the 

applicant. Event Plans must address all requirements of the application form (or indicate 

where not applicable), including applicant information, dates and times of event, site 

plans, and considerations related to logistics and access, potential disruptions, security, 

washrooms and sanitation, first aid, waste management, and any other requirements that 

may be identified by the Village or the applicant.  

2.7. The Village may impose additional conditions to a Special Event Permit or request 

additional detail.  

2.8. Event organizers must comply with the Special Event Plan and Special Event Permit 

Agreement as outlined in the application form, as well as any additional conditions 

imposed by the Village.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 

CORPORATE POLICY NO. 212 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 1 Policy 212 Special Event Policy.docx 

2.9. The decision to grant or deny a Special Event Permit is at the discretion of the Village  

and is delegated to the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO).    

2.10. The CAO may require an on-site inspection by a Building / Fire representative prior to  

approval.  

2.11. In evaluating whether to approve or reject a Special Event Permit application, the CAO 

may consider factors including, but not limited to:  

2.11.1. Impacts on Municipal facilities, staff, and other resources; 

2.11.2. Event security and other risks, including public safety and wildfires;  

2.11.3. Anticipated disruptions and potential public nuisances; and 

2.11.4. Access and parking suitability.  

 

3. Additional Permits 

3.1. All vendors at Special Events require a business license to operate in the Village of 

Belcarra (e.g. ride operators, food trucks, etc.) 

3.2. Additional permits may be required, depending on the nature of the event, and must be 

obtained from the relevant approving authority. It is the responsibility of the applicant, 

with the Public Works Coordinator or Building Inspector, to determine if additional 

permits are required. Additional permits may include but are not limited to the 

following: 

• Building Permits 

• Food Permits  

• Food Truck Certification 

• Gaming Permits 

• Highway Use Permits 

• Liquor Permits 

• Music Licences 

• Special Equipment Permits (e.g. rides) 

• Port of Vancouver approval for activities based on the water 

 

4. Insurance 

4.1. Applicants must provide proof of insurance for the intended use, including commercial 

general liability for a limit of not less than two million ($2,000,000) dollars per 

occurrence with respect to third party liability claims for bodily injury, property damage, 

personal injury, or death, and showing the Village of Belcarra as an Additional Named 

Insured. Such insurance must stay in force and not be amended, cancelled or allowed to 

lapse during the term of the Special Event.  

 

 

 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 1 Policy 212 Special Event Policy.docx 

5. Parking  

5.1. Special Events shall comply with the Village of Belcarra Parking Regulation & 

Enforcement Bylaw 518, 2018.  

5.2. In the event that special parking provisions are required (for loading/equipment, 

overflow attendee parking requirements, etc.) a detailed parking plan must be provided.  

5.3. The Village will not permit event attendee and staff parking on unpaved Village property 

(grassy areas) for events; exceptions may be made for specialized event vehicles, such as 

food trucks. 

 

6. Notification  

6.1. Applicants should outline their proposed approach to notification in their Special Event 

Permit application. Notification by way of event advertising (newspapers, signs), may be 

acceptable in some circumstances.  

6.2. The Village may require, at its discretion, additional notification beyond what is 

proposed in an application, depending on event circumstances.  

6.3. At a minimum, immediate neighbours must be notified by the applicant at their expense 

upon approval of a Special Event Permit. 

6.4. At its discretion, the Village may require notification by the applicant at their expense 

prior to issuing a Special Event Permit.  

6.5. Emergency services, including RCMP and Sasamat Fire Protection Services must be 

notified. At the Village’s discretion, approval from relevant emergency services may be 

required prior to issuing a Special Event Permit.  

 

7. Noise and Nuisance 

7.1. Event hosts must respect the quiet, residential, and rural nature of the Village.  

7.2. Any event requiring relaxation of requirements of the Belcarra Noise Bylaw No. 40, 1981 

should state so explicitly in their application for Village approval (e.g., extended hours, etc) 

or will otherwise be liable for violation of the Noise Bylaw.  

 

8. Enforcement 

8.1. This policy shall be enforced as provided under the Noise Bylaw, Parking Bylaw, 

Special Event Bylaw, or other regulations as applicable. 

8.2. Provisions of the Zoning Bylaw, Noise Bylaw, Special Event Bylaw, or other Village of 

Belcarra Bylaws shall take precedence over provisions of this policy.  

8.3. Operators found to be not in compliance with this policy may have their Special Event 

Permits rescinded without refund or may be barred from receiving a Special Event 

Permit in future, at the discretion of the Chief Administrative Officer.  

8.4. The Village will take reasonable steps to investigate and evaluate contraventions of this 

Policy and other applicable Village regulations related to Special Events on a complaint 

basis.   



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 1 Policy 212 Special Event Policy.docx 

8.5. The fine for hosting an event without a permit or operating an event in violation of the 

provisions of this policy or conditions of the permit shall be at the discretion of the 

Village of Belcarra Chief Administrative Officer to the maximum fine set out in the 

Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 as may be amended from 

time to time.   

8.6. Each person who contravenes any of the provisions of this policy or the conditions of a 

permit shall commit an offence against the policy and each day that such a contravention 

continues shall constitute a separate offence.  

8.7. The maximum penalty established by the Fees and Charges Bylaw does not limit 

liability for any damage to public or private property as a result of violation of any 

Village regulations for any person hosting an event in the Village of Belcarra.  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION FORM 

 
PLEASE SUBMIT APPLICATIONS 3 MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ANTICIPATED EVENT 

DATE. LATE APPLICATIONS MAY NOT BE PROCESSED OR APPROVED.  

 

 

DATE OF APPLICATION: ____________________________________ 

 

1.0 APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 

Name of Event: __________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant Organization: ____________________________________________________________ 

Applicant Name: _________________________________________________________________ 

Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

City: ______________________ Province: ______________________ Postal Code: ___________ 

Home Phone: __________________________ Office: ________________________ 

Cell: __________________________ Fax: __________________________ 

Website: _____________________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________________ 

Contact name ON-SITE on day of event: ________________________ Cell: ______________________ 

Type of Organization: 

☐ Registered non-profit (society number: ________________________) 

☐Private/Commercial (incorporation number: ________________________) 

☐ Other (please specify: ________________________________________________) 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC V3H 4P8  

Phone: (604) 937-4100 Fax: (604) 939-5034 Email: 

belcarra@belcarra.ca Website: https://belcarra.ca 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 2 2020 05 11 Special Events APPLICATION 

FORM.docx                                                                2 

 

2.0 EVENT INFORMATION  
 

Please attach an event description outlining the following considerations. Please use the following 

headers for ease of application review.  

 

☐ Name of event_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

☐ Description of event and purpose________________________________________________________ 

 

☐ Dates and times of event (including setup/take down)________________________________________ 

 

☐ Location information_________________________________________________________________ 

• site plan/map (attached) 

• location of permanent and temporary structures and other equipment (*NOTE: Building 

permits will be required for tents and stages larger than 100 sq ft or any stage 

constructed to be over 2 ft above the ground.) 

• assembly areas including tents, stages, and open areas  

• parking 

 

☐ Access and parking 

• transportation demand measures (e.g. bike parking/valet, shuttle, water access, etc.) 

• Traffic Management Plan (e.g. will event organizers be directing traffic, flaggers if 

required, etc) 

• anticipated traffic disruptions or temporary parking restrictions 

 

☐ Intended advertising / notification of event (copy attached) 

  Note: Notification must include immediate neighbours. Additional notification may be required at 

the discretion of the Village. Police and fire services must be notified.  

 

☐ Anticipated number of attendees, including staff, organizers, volunteers, participants, spectators, etc. 

    ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

☐ Setup and takedown plan ______________________________________________________________ 

• logistics 

• loading  

• anticipated disruptions 

 

☐ Security plan________________________________________________________________________ 

• RCMP or private security or no security planned for the event 

 

☐ Washrooms / sanitary considerations – Number & Location 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

☐ First Aid plan (in the event of medical distress or emergency)_________________________________ 

• Location of First Aid services 

• Emergency vehicle access and egress 

• Communications plan describing protocol for on-site event managers  

• Emergency contacts provided to Village of Belcarra staff 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 2 2020 05 11 Special Events APPLICATION 

FORM.docx                                                                3 

 

☐ Inclement weather contingency plan (if the event must be rescheduled or activities must be moved due 

to inclement weather)_________________________________________________________________ 

 

☐ Environmental sustainability/waste mitigation plan 

• Waste disposal (at event and after) 

• Any sustainability measures being implemented at the event to mitigate waste generation 

 

☐ Outline any other anticipated impacts or anticipated benefits to the Village_______________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
Please complete the following (applicants may provide additional information in their attached 

event description as needed):  

 

Type of event: 

☐ Festival 

☐ Private Party 

☐ Sporting Event (other than run/walk) 

☐ Run/Walk 

☐ Community Celebration 

☐ Product Launch/Promotion 

☐ Other (please specify): 

 

Purpose of event: 

☐ Fundraising 

☐ Promotion 

☐ Revenue Generation 

☐ Community Event 

☐ Other (please specify):  

 

Will your event be open to the public? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Are attendees required to register or purchase tickets for this event? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

 

3.0 EVENT LOGISTICS 
 

Please indicate whether your event will include any of the following. If yes to any, please provide detail 

in your attached event description.  

 

Amplified sound (e.g. music, announcements, fireworks, etc): ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Food (e.g. Barbeque, vendors, etc): ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 *NOTE: Food permits must be secured through Fraser Health when applicable. 

 

 

Alcohol: ☐ Yes ☐ No (Permit / License attached) 

Liquor License, Bartender _______________________________________________________________ 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 2 2020 05 11 Special Events APPLICATION 

FORM.docx                                                                4 

 

*NOTE: LCRB permits must be secured as required for any liquor sales/service (see 

https://specialevents.bcldb.com). 

 

Sales of any kind (e.g. raffle tickets, food, merchandise): ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 *NOTE: BCLC permits must be secured as required for any gambling. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Sponsors: ☐ Yes ☐ No 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Vehicle Parking, including loading of equipment: ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Other proposed activities, such as fireworks, rides, or attractions: ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 *NOTE: additional costs or approvals may be required.   

 

Security or traffic control: ☐ Yes ☐ No ____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.0 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

The following should be submitted with your application:  

 

☐ Application fee: as specified in the Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, as amended from 

time to time. The Village reserves the right to charge additional fees or require deposits depending on 

event circumstances. 

 

☐ Proof of insurance for the intended use, including commercial general liability for a limit of not less 

than two million ($2,000,000) dollars per occurrence with respect to third party liability claims for bodily 

injury, property damage, personal injury, or death, and showing the Village of Belcarra as an Additional 

Named Insured. Such insurance must stay in force and not be amended, cancelled or allowed to lapse 

during the term of the Special Event.  

 

Signature of applicant: ___________________________________ 

 

Name of applicant: ______________________________________ 

 

Date: _________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Attachment 2 2020 05 11 Special Events APPLICATION 

FORM.docx                                                                5 

 

For Village use only:  

 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT AGREEMENT 
 

A Village of Belcarra Special Event Permit is hereby issued for an event to be conducted in 

accordance with the details of the Special Event Permit Application Form above and attached 

Event Plan (provided by applicant), as well as any additional requirements stipulated by the 

Village.  

 

 

____________________________________________ (event name)  

 

approved on: _________________________________ (date). 

 

Authorized by: ________________________________________________ 

   (name and signature) 

 

 

Additional requirements issued by Village (to be attached as permit conditions)? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

 

Event organizers shall comply with event plans as provided to Village or as amended by 

additional requirements stipulated by the Village.  



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\Bylaw 563, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517 2018.docx 

 

  

 

An amendment bylaw to establish a fine for violation of the Village of Belcarra Special Events 

Policy.  

 

WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time 

to time; 

 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 

Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 563, 2020” 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended in 

Schedule 3 – Business License Fees, under “Special Event Permit,” by adding the 

following:  

Maximum fine for violation of the Village of Belcarra 

Event Permit Policy or a condition of an Event Permit  

$10,000 per 

occurrence at the 

discretion of the Chief 

Administrative Officer 

 

3. That the Special Event Permit fee be amended from $195.00 to $350.00 per day.  

 

READ A FIRST TIME on 

 

READ A SECOND TIME on 

 

READ A THIRD TIME on 

 

ADOPTED by the Council on 

 

 

   

Neil Belenkie 

Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 

Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 

Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 563, 2020 

 

 

Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 

Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, 

Amendment Bylaw No. 563, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 L. Dysart, Parking & Bylaw 

Enforcement Update.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  

Date:        May 25, 2020  

 

From:       Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer   

 

Subject:    Parking and Bylaw Enforcement Update 
 

 

Recommendations: 

1. That Council approve the parking status remaining the same with various areas for parking, No 

Parking and Resident Only Parking within the Village; and  

That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines 

Or - 

2. That Council approve temporary Resident Only Parking in the Village until September 8, 2020 

at a cost of approximately $3,000; and 

That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines.  

Or -  

3. That Council approve permanent Resident Only Parking in the Village, effective as soon as 

possible, at a cost of approximately $3000; and 

That staff report back with a bylaw amendment to increase various parking fines. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the parking situation and Bylaw Enforcement 

and to have Council provide staff with direction regarding parking in the Village. 

Background 

In 2018, Council adopted a Traffic and Parking Regulation Bylaw No. 518, 2018 and a Bylaw 

Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 520, 2018.  These bylaws were adopted in order to commence 

managing traffic and parking issues within the Village.   

Initially, a temporary, part time Bylaw Enforcement Officer was hired who worked specific hours 

when the overflow of parking from Port Moody and Belcarra Park were at the highest level.  The 

Bylaw Enforcement Officer worked for the summer in 2018.  Following his departure, The Waste 

and Recycle Depot Attendant took Bylaw Enforcement training at the Justice Institute, as she 

indicated her interest in becoming a Bylaw Enforcement Officer.  The joint position of WARD 

Attendant and Bylaw Enforcement Officer has proven successful.   

A Town Hall was held on March 21, 2019, led by Councillor Clark, with a follow up report to 

Council on April 8, 2019.  The report resulted in direction to staff to validate the number of signs 

required relating to safety, service and anticipated costs.  At a Council meeting on April 24, 2019, 

Council approved installation of approximately 15 signs at Midden Road, Bedwell Bay Road and 

Belcarra Bay Road.  The installation of parking signs with various parking requirements has taken 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Council Report: Parking & Bylaw Enforcement 

May 25, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 25\2020 05 25 L. Dysart, Parking & Bylaw 

Enforcement Update.docx 

place since this time.  Council also requested that staff contact Metro Vancouver Parks with a 

request for improved signage for the Parks and for trails.   

Metro Vancouver Parks has made changes to their signage including installing reader boards on 

Bedwell Bay Road that directs traffic to Belcarra Park and advising that there is no parking for the 

Park in Belcarra.  On May 15, 2020, Port Moody installed Temporary No Parking signs all along 

Bedwell Bay Road.  This new signage in Port Moody significantly increased traffic in the Village.  

When required, Coquitlam Towing has provided back up for Bylaw Enforcement.   

Staff continue to do significant work related to improving and managing traffic and parking, as 

well as managing the Bylaw Enforcement ticketing processes.   

It is noted that the Village of Anmore has adopted a No Street Parking Policy and the Village of 

Lions Bay is in the process of tripling parking fines.   

 

 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Note: Photos available at the Village office.



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Note: Photo available at the Village office.



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15




